Document Pack

THURSDAY, 12TH MARCH, 2020

TO: ALL MEMBERS OF THE DEMOCRATIC SERVICES COMMITTEE

I HEREBY SUMMON YOU TO ATTEND A MEETING OF THE
DEMOCRATIC SERVICES COMMITTEE WHICH WILL BE HELD IN THE
CHAIRMAN'S ROOM, COUNTY HALL, CARMARTHEN AT 10.00 A.M.
ON THURSDAY, 19TH MARCH, 2020 FOR THE TRANSACTION OF THE
BUSINESS OUTLINED ON THE ATTACHED AGENDA

Wendy Walters
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Democratic Officer:

Michelle Evans Thomas

Telephone (direct line):

(01267) 224470

E-Mail:

MEEvansThomas@carmarthenshire.gov.uk
Wendy Walters Prif Weithredwr, Chief Executive,
Neuadd y Sir, Caerfyrddin. SA31 1JP
County Hall, Carmarthen. SA31 1JP

DEMOCRATIC SERVICES COMMITTEE
MEMBERSHIP – 5 MEMBERS
PLAID CYMRU GROUP 3 MEMBERS
1.
2.
3.

Councillor Tyssul Evans [Vice-Chair]
Councillor Emlyn Schiavone
Councillor Dai Thomas

LABOUR GROUP 1 MEMBER
1.

Councillor Suzy Curry [Chair]

INDEPENDENT GROUP 1 MEMBER
1.

Councillor Jim Jones

AGENDA
1.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE.

2.

DECLARATIONS OF PERSONAL INTERESTS.

3.

TO APPROVE AND SIGN AS A CORRECT RECORD THE
MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON THE 2ND DECEMBER
2019.

5-8

4.

UPDATE ON MEMBER DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2020/21.

9 - 16

5.

MEMBER DEVELOPMENT - PERSONAL DEVELOPMENT
REVIEWS [PDR].

17 - 30

6.

INDEPENDENT REMUNERATION PANEL FOR WALES ANNUAL
REPORT - FEBRUARY 2020.

31 - 34

7.

INDEPENDENT REMUNERATION PANEL FOR WALES (IRPW)
DRAFT SUPPLEMENTARY REPORT-THE PRINCIPLES
RELATING TO THE REIMBURSEMENT OF COSTS OF CARE.

35 - 44

This page is intentionally left blank

Document Pack

Agenda Item 3

DEMOCRATIC SERVICES COMMITTEE
Monday, 2 December 2019
PRESENT: Councillor W.T. Evans (Vice-Chair in Chair)
Councillors:
E.M.J.G. Schiavone and J.M. Charles (In place of D. Thomas)
The following Officers were in attendance:
G. Morgan, Head of Democratic Services
H. Daniels, Corporate Learning and Development Advisor
L. Jenkins, Democratic Services Officer
Chairman's Room, County Hall, Carmarthen, SA31 1JP. 10.00 - 10.40 am
1.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE.
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors S. Curry and D. Thomas.

2.

DECLARATIONS OF PERSONAL INTERESTS.
There were no declarations of Personal Interest.

3.

TO APPROVE AND SIGN AS A CORRECT RECORD THE MINUTES OF THE
MEETING HELD ON THE 30TH JULY 2019
Members noted that the 21st Century Workshop due to be held on the 26th
September had been cancelled due to a low number of Members signed-up to
attend.
UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on the 30th
July 2019 be signed as a correct record.

4.

INDEPENDENT REMUNERATION PANEL FOR WALES DRAFT ANNUAL
REPORT - FEBRUARY 2020
The Committee were reminded that each year, the Independent Remuneration for
Wales (IRPW) determines the rates of payment which are made to elected and coopted Members of Welsh local authorities for the following municipal year and has
powers to make recommendations on proposed variations to the remuneration of
Chief Executives and Chief Officers of Principal Councils in Wales.
The Committee considered the draft determinations of the IRPW for 2020 and
were advised that the IRPW invited comments on the draft report by the 10th
December 2019.

Page 5

The Head of Democratic Services advised that for 2020/21 the IRPW
recommended:  an increase in Basic Salaries of 2.5% (£350), bringing the basic salary for
Councillors up to £14,218
 no additional increase for Senior and Civic Salary holders
 that in respect of the costs of care that relevant authorities should only
publish the total amount reimbursed during the year.
 that the 2020/21 payments take effect from 1st April 2020.
Representations had meet made at a regional meeting with the IRPW on the 22nd
of October for the effective date for 2020/21 salary levels to be maintained from
commencement of the 2020/21 municipal year and not 1st April 2020. The Head of
Democratic Services also outlined representations made to the IRPW in relation to
the level of remuneration by principal Councils that require a decision of full
Council. One of these decisions is the maximum number of days in one year for
which co-opted members can be paid. The Head of Democratic Services as part of
the consultation period has suggested that it would be useful, if this option was
reconsidered.
UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED:
4.1
4.2
5.

that the report be received
to authorise the Chair of the Committee to submit a response to the
IRPW on behalf of the Committee.

CARMARTHENSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL'S SCRUTINY FUNCTION - ANNUAL
REPORT 2018/19
In the absence of the Chair of the Chair and Vice-Chairs of Scrutiny Forum the
Head of Democratic Services provided an overview of the Annual Report which
outlines the Council’s Scrutiny Function and makes specific reference to the work
of the 5 Scrutiny Committees: Policy & Resources
Community
Education & Children
Environmental & Public Protection
Social Care & Health
UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED that the report be received and circulated to all
members of the Council

6.

DEMOCRATIC SERVICES COMMITTEE - ANNUAL REPORT 2018-19
The Local Government (Wales) Measure 2011 requires each Principal Council to
establish a Democratic Services Committee. The report under review outlines the
work of the Committee during the 2018/19 municipal year.
UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED that the report be received and circulated to all
members of the Council

Page 6

7.

DEMOCRATIC SERVICES FUNCTION
The Democratic Services Committee considers matters relating to the provision of
support services provided to them in accordance with the Local Government
(Wales) Act 2011. The report as outlined requires the committee to consider the
information contained in the report and determine whether the provision of staff,
accommodation and other resources made available to the Head of Democratic
Services is adequate to deliver the Democratic Process for the forthcoming year.
During this discussion the Chair noted the lack of facilities within County Hall for
individual Members to work and to hold group meetings, the Head of Democratic
Services advised that, as part of County Hall development works, proposals had
been put in place to provide additional meeting rooms and facilities.
UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED that the report be received

8.

COUNCILLORS' EXPENSES - SELF SERVICE
The Committee received a report outlining the transition to self-service Councillor
expenses and noted that due to security and compliance risks, the Head of
Democratic Services had been advised by the IT Division that the existing
expenses database would be discontinued by the 31st March 2020. As a result,
the Authority would need to find an alternative system for processing expenses,
and it was therefore necessary for all members move to the self-service module
with effect from March 31st 2020.
UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED that the report be received

9.

DEMOCRATIC SERVICES FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME 20/21
The Committee received and considered a suggested Forward Work Programme
for the 2020/21 municipal year
UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED that the Democratic Services Committee 2020/21
Forward Work Programme be adopted.

________________________
CHAIR

__________________
DATE

Page 7

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8

Agenda Item 4
Democratic Services Committee
Date: 19/03/20
Subject:
Purpose

UPDATE ON MEMBER DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2020/21

To provide an update on the proposal for supporting
Elected Member development based on recent research and initial feedback
from Group Leaders and to seek the endorsement of the DSC and any
variations/ amendments to the proposal.

Recommendations / key decisions required:
That Democratic Services Committee endorse the proposal for Member
engagement on the 21st Century Councillor Model and establishing a new
approach to the formulation and delivery of the Member Development
Programme.

Reasons:
To contribute to Member Development Plan 2020-21 ensuring the application of
best practice and research that will improve Member engagement and the
learning experience.
Relevant scrutiny committee to be consulted NA
Exec Board Decision Required

NA

Council Decision Required

NA

EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBER PORTFOLIO HOLDER:- S.Curry – Member Development
Champion and L.M. Stephens – Executive Board Member
Directorate: CEX
Name of Head of Service: Paul
R Thomas
Report Author: Hayley Daniels

Tel Nos. 01267 246186
Designations: Corporate
Development Advisor

E Mail Addresses:
HMDaniels@carmarthenshire
.gov.uk

Page 9

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
Democratic Services Committee
19/03/2020
Consultation on Member Development Plan
Background
The Local Government Measure 2011 highlights the responsibility of Local Authorities to
provide reasonable development opportunities to its Elected Members. Carmarthenshire
County Council’s Member Development Strategy sets out our approach to Member
development which is regularly reviewed to such development needs are supported.
On the 30th July 2019, Organisation Development put forward a proposal for Member
engagement on the 21st Century Councillor Model and establishing a new approach to the
formulation and delivery of the Member Development Programme.
Discussions and workshops have since taken place with Executive Board, Group Leaders, and
the Chair of the Democratic Services Committee to formulate an outline plan based on existing
and emerging skill sets for the “21st Century Councillor”.
A blended and inclusive approach to learning that reflects different learning styles has
established two distinct areas of development.



Foundational Skills– Practical and knowledge skills (covered by most existing
learning and development)
Relational Skills – Connective, digital & reflective skills (to be effective as a 21st Century
Councillor and covered as part of learning conversations).

See Table 1 - Sample Development Programme – Elected Members
A wokshop for all member enagement was postponed in September 2019 due to limited
availability and the emergence of the General Election in late 2019 has resulted in a delay of
re-arrangeing the workshop. Wider consultation with all members is still required



To seek the views of Members on how best they want to be supported and the likely
areas they wish to focus on as part of their individual learning conversations.
The outcomes will inform the resourcing, prioritisation and delivery of the Member
Development Plan for endorsement by the Democratic Services Committee.

A new proposed timeline sets out the engagement process with members for discussions
around the member development plan and 21st Century Councillor.
DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED?

Page 10

YES

IMPLICATIONS
I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors /
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with this
report :
Signed:

P.R. Thomas

Assistant Chief Executive

Policy, Crime
& Disorder
and
Equalities

Legal

Finance

ICT

Risk
Management
Issues

Staffing
Implications

Physical
Assets

NONE

NONE

NONE

NONE

NONE

NONE

NONE

CONSULTATIONS
I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed below
Signed:

P.R. Thomas

Assistant Chief Executive

1. Scrutiny Committee: N/A
2.Local Member(s)
Individual Members consulted as part of 1-1 Personal Development Meeting with
Group Leaders or Deputy Group Leaders.
3. Community / Town Council – N/A
4. Relevant Partners – N/A
5. Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations – N/A
Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:
THERE ARE NONE
Title of Document

(Delete as applicable)

File Ref No.

Locations that the papers are available for public inspection

Page 11

This page is intentionally left blank

Member Development Programme 2020/21
Background
The Local Government Measure 2011 highlights the responsibility of Local Authorities to
provide reasonable development opportunities to its Elected Members. Carmarthenshire
County Council’s Member Development Strategy sets out our approach to Member
development which is regularly reviewed to such development needs are supported.
On the 30th July 2019, Organisation Development put forward a proposal for Member
engagement on the 21st Century Councillor Model and establishing a new approach to the
formulation and delivery of the Member Development Programme.
Discussions and workshops have since taken place with Executive Board, Group Leaders, and
the Chair of the Democratic Services Committee to formulate an outline plan based on
existing and emerging skill sets for the “21st Century Councillor”.
A blended and inclusive approach to learning that reflects different learning styles has
established two distinct areas of development.



Foundational Skills– Practical and knowledge skills (covered by most existing
learning and development)



Relational Skills – Connective, digital & reflective skills (to be effective as a 21st
Century Councillor and covered as part of learning conversations).

See Table 1 - Sample Development Programme – Elected Members

A wokshop for all member enagement was postponed in September 2019 due to limited
availability and the emergence of the General Election in late 2019 has resulted in a delay of
re-arrangeing the workshop. Wider consultation with all members is still required



To seek the views of Members on how best they want to be supported and the likely
areas they wish to focus on as part of their individual learning conversations.
The outcomes will inform the resourcing, prioritisation and delivery of the Member
Development Plan for endorsement by the Democratic Services Committee.

A new proposed timeline sets out the engagement process with members for discussions
around the member development plan and 21st Century Councillor.

Page 13

Member
Engagement via
questionnaire at
County Council
1st April 2020

21st Century
Councillor
Workshop

Member
Development Plan
20/21

18th May 2020

September 2020

Recommendations
That Democratic Services Committee:
1. Endorse the proposal for Member engagement on the 21st Century Councillor
Model, establishing a new approach to the formulation and delivery of the Member
Development Programme.
2. Agree the timeline for the formulation of a detailed Members Development
Programme.

Page 14

Table 1 – Sample Development Programme – Elected Members
Foundational Skills

Relational Skills

How the Council Works

Councillors and Officers Working Well

Roles & Responsibilities of Councillors

Experience of Full Council

Effective Overview & Scrutiny (L@W)

Managing Effective Surgeries and Casework
(L@W)

Budgetary Skills

Media Skills (L@W)

Leadership Development

Public Speaking (L@W)

Chairing Skills (L@W)

Listening & Communication Skills

Digital Skills

Strength Based Approaches – Finding
Solutions

Equality, Diversity & Inclusion (L@W)

Personal Resilience

Recruitment/Appointment Panels &
Appeals Panels
Policy Updates

Mentoring and Coaching Skills
Influencing & Negotiating Skills

(L@W) Learning@Wales is a national elearning platform managed by the Digital Learning
Wales Team. A variety of elearning modules have been developed for elected members.

Page 15

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 5
DEMOCRATIC SERVICES COMMITTEE
19TH MARCH 2020

Member Development – Personal Development Reviews [PDR]
Purpose: To consider options for providing a member–led process for conducting
personal development reviews which meets the needs of members and invites
increased participation.

RECOMMENDATIONS / KEY DECISIONS REQUIRED:
To consider arrangements for a Personal Development Review (PDR) process that
will be made available to all Elected Members

REASONS:
To ensure Carmarthenshire’s process for conducting personal development reviews meets
the needs of members and invites increased participation.
Relevant scrutiny committee to be consulted NO
Exec Board Decision Required
NO (Delete as applicable)
Council Decision Required
NO (Delete as applicable)
Relevant Executive Board Portfolio Holder – Cllr Suzy Curry – Chair of Democratic Services
Committee and Member Development Champion/Cllr Mair Stephens – Member Development
Lead for the Executive Board.
Directorate: CEX

Designations:

Name of Head of Service:
Paul Thomas

Assistant Chief Executive

Report Author: Hayley Daniels

Corporate Development Advisor

Tel Nos. 01267 246186
E Mail Addresses:
HMDaniels@carmarthenshire.
gov.uk

Page 17

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
DEMOCRATIC SERVICES COMMITTEE
19TH MARCH 2020
Member Development – Personal Development Reviews [PDR]

The Local Government (Wales) Measure 2011 (Chapter 1 – Part 7) makes specific provision
for the training and development of members of a local authority and states that


“A local authority must make available to each member of the authority an annual
review of the member's training and development needs.



The review must include an opportunity for an interview with a person who is, in the
opinion of the authority, suitably qualified to provide advice about the training and
development needs of a member of a local authority.”
-----------Elected Members have a wide range of roles and responsibilities which they are expected to
undertake. The PDR process will assist Elected Members to identify any support that may
be required to fulfil these roles effectively. Attaining the appropriate level of knowledge, skills
and experience identified during the PDR process will enable them to fulfil their roles
The Authority has previously taken the approach that Personal Development Reviews
should be undertaken by the leaders of the political groups, this will allow groups to identify
those areas where there is a demand for training so that it is member-led. This will enable
training to be undertaken in non-political, possibly informal groups where appropriate,
bearing in mind the limited resources, and the preparation of a planned training programme.
The Corporate Development Advisor will be on hand to assist in any member-led
assessment of training needs and to enable the Member Development Programme to be
tailored in accordance with training needs.
Attached for the Committees attention are the existing templates which are made available
to Group Leaders to assist in the reviews.
It is suggested that the training needs of any unaffiliated members should be ascertained by
the Chair of the Democratic Services Committee.
DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED?

Page 18

Template introductory letter (Appendix 1)
Self-review template [for completion by the individual
member] (Appendix 2)
Summary of development needs (Appendix 3)
WLGA Development Framework for Councillors in
Wales (Appendix 4)

IMPLICATIONS
I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors /
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with this
report :
Signed:

Paul R Thomas

Assistant Chief Executive

Policy, Crime
& Disorder
and
Equalities

Legal

Finance

ICT

Risk
Management
Issues

Staffing
Implications

Physical
Assets

NONE

NONE

NONE

NONE

NONE

NONE

NONE

CONSULTATIONS
I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as
detailed below
Signed: P.R. Thomas Assistant Chief Executive (People Management and Performance)
1. Scrutiny Committee n/a
2.Local Member(s) n/a
3.Community / Town Council n/a
4.Relevant Partners n/a
5.Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations n/a
Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:
THERE ARE NONE

Page 19

This page is intentionally left blank

Dear Colleague
Individual 1 to 1 Personal Development Review
The LG Measure 2011 requires that every local authority member “…must be offered
the opportunity to have their training and development needs reviewed on an annual
basis. [This] must include an opportunity for a pre-planned interview between the
member and a suitably qualified person.”
At a meeting of the Democratic Services Committee & Group Leaders/Deputies the
decision was made to offer member-led personal development reviews to all elected
members with the reviews being carried out by group leaders, their deputies or
another nominated senior member from within their party.
I would, therefore, like to invite you to meet with me for a confidential discussion
about your ongoing development. The purpose of this meeting is to support you in
your role as an elected member and ensure that you receive any development
necessary to assist you in your duties.
As part of this, you will have the opportunity to reflect on your existing skills and
knowledge before identifying what development would be most useful for you in
terms of your continuing professional development.
To ensure we make the best use of our time, I would kindly request that you
complete the attached Personal Development Self-Reflection Template and bring
this with you to the meeting.
While our discussion will remain confidential, any development opportunities which
you identify will, if appropriate, be shared with the relevant officer to inform the
Member Development Plan 2018/19 in order for the correct support to be identified
and provided.
Our aim is to complete all Personal Development Reviews by the end of July 2018,
therefore, I should be grateful if you would contact [name / nominated representative]
on [phone no/email] at your earliest convenience to arrange a suitable date & time.
If you have any queries at all, please feel free to contact me on [contact details]

Page 21

This page is intentionally left blank

Personal Development Review
Self-Reflection Template
Please complete this template and bring it along to your Personal Development Review
meeting. This will help to focus the discussion so that you get the most from it. This form
is confidential to you and the person who is conducting your review except for the
Development Action Plan which may be shared with the officer/s responsible for member
support or development.
Name:...................................................................................... Date of meeting:..............................

1. What are my current roles and responsibilities?

2. What specific tasks do I need to achieve this year? What do I plan to do and by when?

3. What do I need to know about and be able to do to undertake my role and deliver my
plans?

4. What aspects of the role am I most confident in?

Page 23

5. Where do I currently feel less confident?

6. What might prevent me from undertaking my role as effectively as I would like?

7. What learning and development have I undertaken this year?

8. What have I learned and been able to achieve as a result of this learning and
development?

9. What additional learning and development would be useful?

10. What support could I offer to my colleagues?

Page 24

Development Action Plan

Areas that I would like to develop
Skills: [E.g. chairing meetings, questioning
techniques, media interviews]

How will I achieve this
[E.g. visits to other authorities, networking
with other members, meeting with relevant
officers, e-learning or workshops etc]

Knowledge: [E.g. code of conduct,
equalities, legislation etc]

Page 25

Page 26

Summary of Member Development Needs Identified at 1-1 PDR’s

2018-19
Please use this table to summarise any development needs identified that require referral to officers for action and/or advice. This may include
requests for workshops / e-learning etc but need not include anything which the individual member is personally responsible for such as reading
relevant journals, browsing the internet or shadowing colleagues.
Name

Topic

Method

Additional notes

Page 27

Page 28

Page 29

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 6
DEMOCRATIC SERVICES COMMITTEE
19TH MARCH 2020
INDEPENDENT REMUNERATION PANEL FOR WALES (IRPW)
ANNUAL REPORT (FEBRUARY, 2020)
RECOMMENDATIONS / KEY DECISIONS REQUIRED:
The Democratic Services Committee is asked to note the determinations by the
IRPW for 2020/21, as detailed within the report.
REASONS:
The Local Authorities (Allowances for Members) (Wales) Regulations 2007 provided for the
establishment of the Independent Remuneration IRPW for Wales (IRPW) to review
councillors’ allowances in Wales. The IRPW was established in January 2008 to prescribe
the maximum levels of allowances payable by County and County Borough Councils in
Wales. Following the approval of The Local Government (Wales) Measure 2011 the
IRPW’s remit has been extended to National Parks and Fire and Rescue Authorities and
Town and Community Councils in Wales and the IRPW can also now prescribe the levels
of allowances / salaries to be paid rather than recommend the maximum levels of
allowances that could be paid.
Council at its meeting held on the 17th April 2013 agreed that the Committee be consulted
on the implementation of reports issued by the Independent Remuneration Panel for Wales
in respect of members allowances etc.
Scrutiny Committee consulted
Exec Board Decision Required
Council Decision Required

Not applicable
NO
YES

Executive Board Member Portfolio Holder(s): Councillors Emlyn Dole (Leader) & David Jenkins (Resources)
Directorate

Chief Executive’s

Name of Head of Service:
Linda Rees Jones

Designations:
Head of Administration & Law

Tel Nos.
01267 224012 LRJ
01267 224026 GM
E Mail Addresses:

Report Author:
Gaynor Morgan

Head of Democratic Services

Lrjones@carmarthenshire.gov.uk
gmorgan@carmarthenshire.gov.uk

Page 31

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
DEMOCRATIC SERVICES COMMITTEE
19TH MARCH 2020

INDEPENDENT REMUNERATION PANEL FOR WALES (IRPW) ANNUAL
REPORT (FEBRUARY, 2020)
The IRPW published its Annual Report in February 2020 and confirmed that there were
currently no options relating to levels of remuneration by principal councils that require a
decision by full council. The IRPW determinations will be included within the Councillors’
and Co-opted Members’ Salaries and Allowances Scheme for 2020/21, which will be
considered at the Annual Meeting of Council on the 20th May 2020.
The main determinations/changes made by the Independent Remuneration Panel for
Wales for 2020/21, are as follows (salaries payable from 1st April 2020) : 

an increase in basic salary for elected members of principal local authorities to £14,218
(an increase of £350 or 2.5%)



no changes are proposed to Band 1 and Band 2 senior salaries payable to the Leader,
Deputy Leader and Executive Members or Band 3, 4 and 5 Senior Salaries (apart from
the increase in basic salary of 2.5%);



no changes to Civic salaries (apart from the increase in basic salary of 2.5 %)



there is no longer a need to determine a cap for Co-opted Members’ Fees,
alternatively the number of days in any one year for which co-opted members
may be paid will reflect the work programme of the relevant committee.



In respect of the reimbursement of the costs of care, the IRPW has for 2020/21
decided that relevant authorities should only publish the total amount reimbursed
during the year, thus removing the two publication options previously provided.

A full copy of the IRPW’s Annual Report (February, 2020) can be viewed on the IRPW’s
website :

https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2020-02/annual-report-2020-to-2021.pdf

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED?

Page 32

NO

IMPLICATIONS
I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors /
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with this
report :
Signed: Linda Rees Jones, Head of Administration & Law
Policy, Crime
& Disorder and
Equalities

Legal

Finance

ICT

Risk
Management
Issues

Staffing
Implications

Physical
Assets

YES

YES

YES

NONE

NONE

NONE

NONE

Policy, Crime & Disorder and Equalities
The existing Members’ Allowances Scheme which is contained within the Council’s Constitution
will need to be amended to reflect the determinations made by the IRPW to the current level of
allowances.
Finance
Any increases within Basic, Senior Salaries, Civic Salaries or Co-opted Members’ fees and
allowances to be paid, would need to be reflected within the Democratic Budget.

Legal
The Council’s Constitution requires the Council to adopt a Scheme for Members Allowances,
the Scheme must meet the requirements imposed by the Independent Remuneration IRPW for
Wales.
Part 8 (sections 141 to 160) and schedules 2 and 3 of the Local Government (Wales) Measure
2011 set out the arrangements for the payments and pensions for members of relevant authorities
and the functions and responsibilities of the Independent Remuneration Panel for Wales.

Page 33

CONSULTATIONS

I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed below
Signed: Linda Rees Jones, Head of Administration & Law

1.Scrutiny Committee Not applicable
2.Local Member(s) Not applicable
3.Community / Town Council Not applicable
4.Relevant Partners Not applicable
5.Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations Not applicable
Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:
THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW:
Title of Document

File Ref No.

Independent Remuneration
IRPW for Wales - Annual
Report (February 2019)

AD030-001

Locations that the papers are available for
public inspection
The Independent Remuneration IRPW for Wales
website:
Cymraeg:https://llyw.cymru/sites/default/files/publication
s/2020-02/adroddiad-blynyddol-2020-i2021.pdf
English:https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications
/2020-02/annual-report-2020-to-2021.pdf

Page 34

Agenda Item 7
DEMOCRATIC SERVICES COMMITTEE
19TH MARCH 2020
INDEPENDENT REMUNERATION PANEL FOR WALES (IRPW)
DRAFT SUPPLEMENTARY REPORT–THE PRINCIPLES
RELATING TO THE REIMBURSEMENT OF COSTS OF CARE
Recommendations / key decisions required:
To consider and comment on the supplementary report.

Reasons:
The IRPW is seeking views on proposals relating to the reimbursement of costs of care.

Relevant scrutiny committee to be consulted N/A
Exec Board Decision Required

NO

Council Decision Required

NO

EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBER PORTFOLIO HOLDER:- Cllr Emlyn Dole, Leader
Directorate: Chief Executive’s
Name of Head of Service:

Designations:

Tel Nos.

Linda Rees Jones

Head of Administration & Law

01267 224010
01267 224026

Report Author:
Gaynor Morgan

Head of Democratic Services

E Mail Addresses:
LRJones@carmarthenshire.gov.uk
GMorgan@carmarthenshire.gov.uk

Page 35

DEMOCRATIC SERVICES COMMITTEE
19TH MARCH 2020
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
INDEPENDENT REMUNERATION PANEL FOR WALES (IRPW) DRAFT
SUPPLEMENTARY REPORT–THE PRINCIPLES RELATING TO THE
REIMBURSEMENT OF COSTS OF CARE

The Independent Remuneration Panel for Wales is responsible for determining the level of
payments to elected members of councils, national park authorities and fire and rescue
authorities in Wales.
For several years, the Panel has endeavoured to find ways to increase the take up of the
financial support for members of councils who have care responsibilities or personal needs as
it believes that this provision is an important factor to increase and sustain diversity of
membership of local authorities.
The Panel has circulated a draft Supplementary Report as part of its continuing review process
and proposes a set of principles that should be adopted by all relevant authorities.
The Democratic Services Committee is requested to consider the set of principles for the
Reimbursement of the Costs of Care, with any observations being included within the
Authority’s consultation response.
The consultation closes on 9 April 2020.

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED?

Page 36

YES –IRPW consultation Letter and Draft Report

IMPLICATIONS
I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors /
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with this
report :
Signed: Linda Rees Jones

Head of Administration & Legal

Policy, Crime
& Disorder
and
Equalities

Legal

Finance

ICT

Risk
Management
Issues

Staffing
Implications

Physical
Assets

NONE

NONE

NONE

NONE

NONE

NONE

NONE

CONSULTATIONS
I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed below
Signed: Linda Rees Jones

Head of Administration & Legal

1. Scrutiny Committee N/A
2.Local Member(s) N/A
3.Community / Town Council N/A
4.Relevant Partners N/A
5.Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations

N/A

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:
THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW
Title of Document

IRPW

File Ref No.

Locations that the papers are available for public inspection

https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/202
0-02/independent-remuneration-panel-for-walesdraft-supplementary-report.pdf

Page 37

This page is intentionally left blank

To:
Leaders and Chief Executives of County and County Borough Councils
Chairs and Chief Executives of National Park Authorities
Chairs and Clerks of Fire and Rescue Authorities
Chair and Chief Executive of One Voice Wales
Leader and Chief Executive of Welsh Local Government Association
Head of Democratic/Members Services of County and County
Borough Councils, National Park Authorities and Fire and Rescue Authorities
Clerks to Community & Town Councils
13 February 2020
Dear Colleagues
Draft Supplementary Report – Principles relating to the reimbursement of
Costs of Care
For several years, the Panel has endeavoured to find ways to increase the take up of
the financial support for members of councils, National Park Authorities and Fire and
Rescue Authorities who have care responsibilities or personal needs. We believe
that this provision is an important factor to increase and sustain diversity of
membership of local authorities.
We keep this provision under constant review and welcome comments and
suggestions about ways in which the take up of this financial support can be
increased.
This draft Supplementary Report is a stage in this continuing review process. It
proposes a set of principles that should be adopted by all relevant authorities. It is a
consultation document and the Panel would appreciate comments prior to the
publication of the final Report. The consultation will run for eight weeks and
responses should be submitted by the 9 April 2020.

Yours sincerely,

John Bader
Chair

Page 39

This page is intentionally left blank

Independent Remuneration
Panel for Wales
Draft Supplementary Report
The Principles relating to the Reimbursement
of Costs of Care

Mae’r ddogfen yma hefyd ar gael yn Gymraeg.
This document is also available in Welsh.
© Crown copyright 2020

WG40024

February 2020
Page 41

Draft Supplementary Report
The Principles in respect of the Reimbursement of Costs of Care (RoCoC)
Introduction
The Panel’s core principles have been a fundamental feature of its work since it was
established and are contained in each Annual Report. These include:
Remuneration
1.3 The Framework provides for payment to members of relevant authorities who
carry a responsibility for serving their communities. The level of payment should
not act as a barrier to taking up or continuing in post. There should be no
requirement that resources necessary to enable the discharge of duties are
funded from the payment. The Framework provides additional payments for
those who are given greater levels of responsibility.
Diversity
1.4 Democracy is strengthened when the membership of relevant authorities
adequately reflects the demographic and cultural make-up of the communities
such authorities serve. The Panel will always take in to account the contribution
its Framework can make in encouraging the participation of those who are
significantly under-represented at local authority level.
The provision of financial support for members with care responsibilities or
personal needs is an important factor in improving and sustaining the diversity of
membership. It is essential that there is clarity in the availability of and the access
to this support. We therefore propose to supplement our core principles with
additions specifically relating to the costs of care. This draft Supplementary Report
sets out our proposals for consultation.
The purpose is:
To enable all members and co-opted members of relevant authorities to carry out
their duties effectively
The Relevant Authorities are:
22 Local Authorities, 735 Town and Community Councils, 3 National Park and 3 Fire
and Rescue Authorities

Page 42

1

The Minimum Authorities should do

How this could be done

1.1

Democratic Services
Committees and or Staff
to review members’
needs annually and when
circumstances change

1

Be clear
who it is
for

1.2

2

Raise
Awareness

3

Promote a
Positive
Culture

4

Set out the
approved
duties for
which
RoCoC
can be
claimed

2.1

Members with primary caring
responsibilities for a child or adult and
or personal support needs where
these are not covered by statutory or
other provision.
For personal support. This might also
include a short term or recent
condition not covered by the Equality
Act 2010, access to work, Personal
Payments, insurance or other
provision.
Ensure potential candidates,
candidates and current members are
aware that RoCoC is available to
them should their current or future
circumstances require.

3.1

Ensure all members understand the
reason for RoCoC and support and
encourage others to claim where
needed.

4.1

Meetings – formal (those called by
the Authority) and those necessary to
members’ work (to deal with
constituency but not party issues)
and personal development (training,
and appraisals.)
Travel – in connection with meetings.
Preparation – reading and
administration are part of a member’s
role. Some meetings and
committees require large amounts of
reading, analysis or drafting before or
after a meeting.
Senior salary holders with additional
duties may have higher costs.

4.2
4.3

4.4

Ensure clear and easily
found information is
available on website and
in election and
appointment materials, at
Shadowing and at
induction and in the
members’ “handbook”.
Signpost to IRPW
Payments to Councillors
leaflets.
Encouragement within
and across all parties of
Relevant Authorities to
support members to
claim.
Agree not to advertise or
make public individual
decisions not to claim.
Approved duties are
usually a matter of fact.
Interpretation of the
IRPW Regulations are
set out in the Annual
Report.
“Any other duty approved
by the authority, or any
duty of class so
approved, undertaken for
the purpose of, or in
connection with, the
discharge of the functions
of the authority or any of
its committees.”

Page 43

2

5

Be flexible
about the
types of
care that
can be
claimed

6

Have a
simple
claim
process

7

Members should not be “out of
pocket”
5.2 Models of care and needs vary
5.3 Members may use a combination of
several care options
5.4 Patterns of care may alter over the
civic and academic year
5.5 Not all care is based on hourly (or
part hourly) rates
5.6 Where a whole session must be paid
for, this must be reimbursed even
where the care need is only for part
of a session
5.7 Members may need to:
5.7.1 book and pay for sessions in
advance
5.7.2 commit to a block contract: week,
month or term
5.7.3 pay for sessions cancelled at short
notice
5.8 Where care need straddles two
sessions both should be reimbursed
6.1 Members should know how to claim.
6.2 The claim process should be clear,
proportionate and auditable.
5.1

Check claim at members’
appraisals and regular
review
Flexibility to accept
paperless invoices
On line form
Same or similar form to
travel costs claim

7.1 The IRPW Framework states:
Comply
with IRPW
Publication “In respect of the publication of the
reimbursement of the costs of care, the
rules
Panel has decided that relevant authorities
should only publish the total amount
reimbursed during the year. It is a matter
for each authority to determine its
response to any Freedom of Information
requests it receives. However, it is not
intended that details of individual claims
should be disclosed.”

Page 44

3

